ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE COMMUNI TY AND REGQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 26, 2006
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas, Co-Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Mark Neuman
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Pete Kott

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI ENW  REGULATORY COWM SSI ON OF ALASKA
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

KATE A ARD, Commi ssioner, Chair

Regul at ory of Al aska (RCA)

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an over of the RCA and answered
gquesti ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 8:07:27 AM
Representatives O son, Thomas, LeDoux, Neunan, and Ci ssna were
present at the call to order. Representative Salnon arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

REGULATORY COVMM SSI ON OF ALASKA

8:08: 03 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- January 26, 2006



KATE d ARD, Conm ssioner, Chair, Regulatory of Alaska (RCA),
Department of Commerce, Community, & Economc Devel opnent
(DCCED), in outlining the course of her discussion, related her
belief that the RCA has to be production-oriented in order to
adequately respond to the business needs of the regulated
utilities and pipelines. M. Gard explained that she is trying
for the 2007 sunset review of the RCA to not be a repeat of the
2003 RCA sunset review Therefore, as the chair she said her
goal is to listen to the legislature, the utilities, and the
pi peline conpanies and try to turn the RCA to a direction that

outl asts herself. In that vein, she highlighted the work she
has done, such as public neetings and neetings with the industry
over possible changes. Ms. Gard characterized the RCA as an

introverted agency in which decisions are sonetinmes nmade in
i sol ated chanbers and | acking transparency. Therefore, for two
years the RCA has talked wth regulated and unregulated
utilities and the owners of the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System
(TAPS) . Ms. Gard said that she hoped the changes being nade
are |long-lasting, although she nentioned that the changes aren't
happeni ng fast enough for her 1iKking.

8:13:35 AM

M5. G ARD turned to the global perspective of the RCA and
provided the commttee wth a chart entitled, "Regulatory
Comm ssion of Alaska - Production Performance Since Last Sunset
Revi ew'. She related that the feedback she receives from the
utilities is that they will accept the RCA s decision, although
they may not like it. However, the utilities want the RCA to
come to its decisions faster, to be nore transparent in its
decisions, and a bit predictable and stable. Utilities say, she
further related, that they don't produce fast enough, and
therefore they don't neet the RCA' s business needs. Ms. Gard
hi ghl i ghted that although the production performance chart | ooks
good because it shows the RCA noving from 376 cases July 1,
2003, to 107 cases June 30, 2005, it doesn't specify how long it
took to decrease the nunber of cases. She said that she could
gauge the success of the RCA if she could provide an average
timeline for each docket and have benchmarks for the |ength of
time for the RCA to make a decision and the tine the order went
out the door. Such benchmarks would show the utilities that
the RCA is responding.

8:18: 27 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -2- January 26, 2006



M5. G ARD noved on to what it looks like when the RCA is
involved in a docket. She provided the committee with a
spreadsheet that |ists the current dockets. She said that if
there were a lot of dockets open from 2003, she would be
unconfortable comng before the conmttee, although she was
unconfortable with 2004 dockets still being open. She noted
that sone of the dockets have 15-nonth tinelines and others have
no tineline. Furthernore, sone of the dockets won't be closed
because the RCAis waiting for a filing fromthe utility.

8:21:41 AM

M5. G ARD then provided the commttee the docket detail for U
00-088, which is the oldest active docket. Review of the
hearing and order histories specify that activity is occurring
with this docunent. She also provided the conmttee with the
docket detail for U 05-007, another open docket. This docket is
interesting because it was opened on 1/26/05, but the RCA didn't
take action until 11/25/05, alnpst 10 nonths |ater. She vi ewed
the aforenentioned as an unacceptable length of tinme to respond
to a docket. However, this can happen when the RCA is busy and

doesn't carefully nmanage its dockets. The system being
i mpl enented will take care of this, she stated.
8:26: 30 AM

M5. 3 ARD addressed the changes that the RCA is making to better
respond and net the needs of the utilities. After neeting with
the pipeline conpanies, the RCA began to better understand the
significant challenges they face with the regulatory paradigmin
Al aska. She infornmed the conmttee that at this point the RCA

has issued regulations for coment. These regul ations would
change the way in which the RCA views pipeline regulation in the
st ate. After neeting with everyone, including the Federal

Energy Regul atory Comm ssion (FERC), the RCA has noved forward
on those regulations, which have been well received thus far.
She related positive coments from BP, the Kenai Kachenak
Pipeline, LLC (KKPL), and Union G| Conpany. Ms. Gard said
that [the regulation change] is comng along, although not as
fast or clean as she would IiKke. She then turned to the
cooments of General Communication, Inc. (GCl), which are
representative of the frustrations sone have with the RCA

M5. G ARD said that in order to attract qualified, diligent
comm ssioners who are willing to put in the tine, they need to
be dedi cat ed. Therefore, the wages for the RCA need to be
rai sed, she opined. She indicated her acceptance of the

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- January 26, 2006



public's disapproval of that suggestion. In fact, GC said that
before giving conm ssioners a raise, the RCA should put in place
performance netrics, define its workload, and review the
performance under the tinelines adopted in 2002. Therefore, M.
G ard opined that nowis the tine to nove forward on performance
measures and setting benchmarks. The comm ssioners have agreed
to do so. Wth regard to whether benchnmarks are adopted as part
of a regulation or part of sonething that's the purview of the
chair is yet to be determned. However, she noted her
preference to place [the benchmarks] in regulation. She
mentioned that the netrics would be brought to the public for
comment, which should be done by the time the |legislative
session is conpl et ed.

VB. G ARD noted that there are sone coments regarding
tineliness in relation to a docunment GCI and ultimately AT&T
filed requesting the issuance of an order by a specific date.
However, the RCA didn't recognize the inportance of the request
until she communicated directly with [GCl representatives and
the former RCA chair]. Once it was determned what would
happen, the RCA responded. Such situations, she opined, won't
be settled by a system because it requires comunication between
the parties. As long as the door is open, the RCA can react,
she said. She related that the RCA is working on how to be
clearer in the future.

8:39:29 AM

M5. G ARD concluded her testinony by speaking about the
statutory tinelines under which the RCA operates. She noted
that for sonme things there are no statutory tinelines, such as
for ETC applications and disaggregation plans. Therefore, she
as the chair, has, in sone dockets, set a tinmeline in the
docket . Once the case managenent system is in place, the RCA
should be able to place a tineline in every docket. The parties
can still protest the tinelines. She expressed her hope that
the tinelines will be in place by July 1. She suspected that
during the 2007 sunset review, the legislature will want to know
whether the RCA has adhered to these tinelines and whether
[other] tinelines should be established. Ms. G ard opined that
the RCA can adhere to any tineline so long as there is a system
in place to track the statutory tinelines. She recalled mssing
a statutory tinmeline and expressed the need not to allow that to
happen again because it neans that something went into place
that could negatively inpact ratepayers. Therefore, Ms. Gard
suggested that the aforenmentioned system be put in place and
that the RCA talk with the utilities regarding tinelines. She

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- January 26, 2006



nmentioned that she would be working on the 2007 sunset review
begi nning July 1.

8:43:49 AM

CO- CHAIR OLSON noted that he spent a significant anount of tine
this interim working on gas line issues and actually net wth
Ms. Gard regarding issues in Cook Inlet. He recalled that the
KKPL cost $20 million and the expenses associated with the RCA
totaled $3.5 mllion. He related his understanding that the
time it took for KKPL to get permtted and the expenses of the
RCA were nuch higher than in other states [contributed to a much
hi gher total expense]. Therefore, he inquired as to how the RCA
can be nore efficient in the permtting process without "killing
them with the expense.

M5. G ARD expressed hope that the regulations being brought
forward would have had a positive inpact on KKPL, which was an
adversarial docket about the rate. She acknow edged that the
rate-setting process for KKPL took a long tinme and is still a
matter before the RCA She then turned to the matter of what
can be done so that such situations as that with KKPL don't
happen again. She inforned the commttee that npst of the Cook
Inlet pipeline disputes are settled by alternative dispute
resolution (ADR) that was working at the Federal Energy
Regul at ory Commi ssion (FERC). Al though use of ADR tends to
lengthen the time frame, ADR has been successful. She
enphasi zed that a business-to-business resolution is far better
than the RCA naking a rate decision. The RCA is noving forward
with ADR, she rel ated.

M5. G ARD opined that part of the problemis the RCA's libera
rules regarding allowing parties into dockets. The pipeline
conpanies have challenged the aforenentioned and discussed
narrowi ng who is allowed into the dockets. However, others say
that there's better evidence with nore parties. Ms. Gard
indicated that the correct balance on that matter is difficult
to find. She then noted that the RCA has sought comment on the
notion of exenpting a pipeline from RCA regulation if it's only
shipping its own fuel, which she referred to as a tier system
The RCA ensures that the rates are fair and reasonable in order
t o encourage devel opnent around the pipeline.

8:51: 03 AM

M5. GQARD, in further response to Co-Chair O son, specified that
currently all pipelines go through the same regul atory regine at

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -5- January 26, 2006



the RCA. Therefore, [the RCA] can allocate and differentiate in
order to pronote econom c devel opnent and the existing pipeline
structure while not danpening the desire to build [a pipeline].

8:51: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noted that he has talked with wutility
conpani es. He then stated that he is sonewhat disturbed with
what he is hearing today. He highlighted that the RCA has
consistently violated statutory directives for tineliness that
were adopted by the legislature in 2002, and yet it was
presented that the RCA wll adopt new regulations regarding
timeliness. He also noted that in several rural communities the
RCA has had to have certificates to operate. Wth regard to the
notion that the RCA is an isolated agency, Representative Neunan

viewed that as a difficulty for utility conpanies. Ther ef or e,
he suggested [making the RCA nore approachable]. Representative
Neuman then turned to M. Gard's wllingness to pay the

conmmi ssioners nore, and suggested that such could be reviewed
after the RCA shows that it can be nore efficient and tinely.
Therefore, he inquired as to what the RCA is doing to establish
a better relationship with the conpanies it regul ates.

8:56:48 AM

M5. G ARD reiterated that she has net with the utilities that
the RCA regulates and inquired as to their view of the RCA,
which didn't happen in the past. Furthernore, the RCA has had
public meetings during which the public is allowed to comment on
possi bl e changes. M. G ard opined that the utilities have nore
i nput now than they ever have. She characterized these as steps
in the right direction, although perhaps not at the speed
desired.

8:59: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX returned to the deadline that the RCA
al nrost mssed and her understanding that it's not a deadline
that a conputer system would catch

M5. G ARD explained that the deadline isn't one that a conputer
system woul d normally catch because it couldn't be programmed in
the system The deadline is driven by a request that has to be
read by a human.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if there could be a form wth
| ocations to insert critical dates, which could be input into
the conputer

M5. G ARD replied yes.
9:01: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA opined that the case reviews provided
don't seemto give enough information to specify the conplicated
situations of each. Therefore, she said it would be nore useful
to have some coding that specifies where, in the process, the
case is. In regard to the [isolated agency], she asked if the
role of the commssioners is simlar to a judge in the court
system such that a firewall of sorts is required.

M5. G ARD specified that the role of the RCA is legislative in
that it nakes regul ations, and thus the RCA should be very open.
However, the role of an RCA comm ssioner is also very judicial
in that he/she nmakes judicial decisions on disputed dockets
simlar to cases before the court. The aforenentioned requires
di scretion such that nost of the tinme [the RCA conm ssioner]
will not talk with the utility about an open docket in order to
avoid violating due process. The aforenentioned has contri buted
to the introverted nature of the RCA Still, Ms. Gard opined
that the chair of the RCA should be allowed and actually have an
obligation to represent the agency and the administration in
regard to the dockets.

9: 06: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON inquired as to who sets the rates for the
utilities in the villages. He also inquired as to how the RCA
regulates [the utilities in the villages].

M5. G ARD pointed out that Representative Salnon's district
i ncl udes a nunerous anount of utilities certificated by the RCA
Furthernore, nmany of [the wutilities in the villages] aren't
economcally regulated and thus the RCA doesn't set the rates
for those. She noted that she has brought staff who could
di scuss the specifics of each utility in the nmenber's district.
In further response to Representative Sal non, Ms. G ard
confirnmed that if the RCA doesn't set the rates, then the
utility conpany does so.

9:08: 55 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA returned to her suggestion to use coding
that would specify "who's the one that has to toss [the ball]
next."

M5. G ARD said that the nore sophisticated data in which
Representative Cissna is interested isn't tracked. Therefore, a
case nmanagenent system woul d generate such reports.

9: 09: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that the court system uses a
system by which the judges have to periodically certify that
deci sions have been nade within a specified tine frane. | f
there isn't a legitimate reason why a case hasn't been decided
within a specified time, the judge doesn't receive his/her
salary. She asked if sonething simlar has been considered for
use with the RCA

M5. GARD clarified that [the RCA] isn't bringing forward
legislation for raises, rather she has nerely inquired as to
what the utilities think of such. |In response to Representative
LeDoux, Ms. Gard specified that when she reviewed the
commi ssioner's salaries she had reviewed the possibility of
tiering their salaries and tying performance on dockets to
sal ari es. However, she indicated that care nust be taken to
ensure that commi ssioners don't "bang" through a docket in order
to receive their salary. Al though the RCA has only nissed one
statutory deadline in its history, she noted that it has the
ability to extend statutory deadlines for 90 days. Wen it does
extend statutory deadlines, it nust report those to the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Commttee. She recalled that in
cal endar year 2005 the RCA extended the statutory deadline in 16
cases. In further response to Representative LeDoux, she
directed attention to the chart which specifies that the RCA
opened 131 cases and cl osed 179 cases.

9:12:21 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS noted his agreenment with Representative LeDoux
regarding the RCA's salary structure to match that of judges

Wth regard to the charts provided to the conmttee, Co-Chair
Thomas pointed out that they should also specify how many
appeal s occur yearly. He then recalled reading that the RCA has
about 20 percent |ess cases than in the past, and therefore he
questioned why the sane anount of comm ssioners would be
necessary.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- January 26, 2006



M5. QARD, in regard to the nunber of appeals of RCA cases,
explained that after the RCA issues an order there's an
opportunity for petition of reconsideration to the full
comi ssi on. After the RCA confirms or denies the panel, the
parties have the opportunity to appeal to the Al aska Superior
Court. She noted that lately there have been a nunber of
appeals filed on RCA decisions. However, generally speaking RCA
deci sions are upheld on appeal. She recalled there only being
one or two remands, which she viewed as a sign of thoughtful
deci sions fromthe RCA

9:15:49 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS requested that he be provided a copy of the
RCA's response to GCl. He mentioned that he I|ikes consistency
in reporting so that one can easily see changes. He asked if

the RCA has the authority to have hearing officers hear dockets
and provide opinions for |ower |evel conplaints, and if so, are
such positions utilized.

V. G ARD, in addressing whether the same anount of
conmi ssioners is necessary, said that it would be a good topic
for discussion during the sunset review. She opined that if the
proposed systens and the funding for them aren't in place, then
t he RCA shoul dn't decrease the nunber of conm ssioners to three.
Again, she said that the topic would be appropriate to review
during the sunset review. Furthernore, decreasing the nunber of
comm ssioners would be sonething about which the RCA would want
to solicit opinions from the utilities. Having five
conmi ssioners allows for a variety of different philosophies for
which there is a cost and a benefit. Ms. Gard noted that the
annual report is provided to |legislators. She acknow edged that

she thinned down the report, perhaps too nuch, and wll attenpt
to achieve a better balance with the upcom ng report. On the
matter of hearing exam ners, the utilities have recommended t hat
the RCA use nore hearing officers. The governor's office has
supported that and thus the RCA is pursuing two nore hearing
officers for a total of four hearing officers. She expl ai ned

that the hearing officers are being placed nore directly in
control since they are attorneys.

9: 20: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON expressed the need to sit wth Ms. Gard
for answers to his questions.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -9- January 26, 2006



V. G ARD reiterated that her staff is avai lable to
Representative Sal non at any tine.

9:21:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a decision is mde by one
conmi ssioner or the entire RCA

M5. G ARD answered that every decision that the RCA nmakes on a
case has to be decided by three conm ssioners, save procedura
decisions that can be nmade by one comm ssioner or a hearing
exam ner.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if there is a problem wth
consistency in panels due to the varying philosophy of the
conmi Ssi oners.

M5. G ARD replied, "yes and no." She explained that the RCA
tries to make decisions based on the precedence it has or "to
di stinguish." However, she acknow edged that the aforenentioned
isn't always successful. She noted that she, as the chair,
assigns conm ssioners to panels. In doing so for inportant
dockets that have economic inpact on a broad section of
rat epayers, all five comm ssioners are assigned.

9:24:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if adding two hearing officers would
allow the hearing officers the ability to do the work tw ce as
fast.

M5. 3 ARD answered that she didn't believe so. The desire [with
adding the two additional hearing officers], she explained, is
to provide the pipelines and utilities better ongoi ng
managemnent . There is a balance between the cost to the
ratepayers to manage the dockets and the benefit to the
utilities to have better nmanagenent, she opi ned.

9: 25: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN related his belief that generally a
business hires nore staff to get the job done faster. However
if the job isn't getting done faster, he questioned whether
addi ti onal staff merely created nore paperwork for the
utilities.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 10- January 26, 2006



M5. G ARD pointed out that frequently the RCA isn't able to

determ ne whether parties disagree. She explained that the
nunber of notions, to a degree, determnes the effort required
to manage the case. She expressed her belief that additional

hearing officers are a good idea in trying to manage the dockets
better.

9:27: 57 AM

CO- CHAIR OLSON turned to the RCA's request for coments on the
[ sal ary] package for the RCA's commissioners, and inquired as to
why the RCA wants to give [control over the comr ssioner's
sal ary] to the governor.

M5. G ARD specified that the salary issue is part of a group of
mat eri al s about which the RCA wants to talk with the utilities.
Ms. Gard related that she proposed [the salary schedule for the
RCA] to mrror that of the Alaska O and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion (AOGCC), which the governor establishes. The force
behind this is to determne what [salary] it takes to attract
good quality people regardless of who sets the salary. In
further response, she noted that nothing has been brought to the
| egi sl ature, although she opined that she personally believes it
to be a good idea.

9:31: 33 AM

CO- CHAIR OLSON asked if any wutilities that the RCA currently
regul ates coul d be deregul at ed.

M5. G ARD suggested that cooperatives nmnaged by nenbers are
probably good candidates to nove outside of the regulatory
par adi gm Such cooperatives would be Honer Electric and Col den
Valley Electric Association (GVEA). However, the challenge
would be in regard to how wholesale and retail are related and
whet her one is regulated and the other isn't. 1In the Lower 48 a
nmet hod by which cooperatives aren't regulated is utilized. "The
challenge with just legislatively setting them free, is that
menbers in every single one of those utilities have the ability
to vote thenmselves out of regulation,”" she related. In regard
to refuse collection, Ms. Gard stated that there is a nonopoly
situation for refuse in certain comrunities. She acknow edged
that sone conmmissioners believe that refuse shouldn't be
regul at ed.

9:33:52 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- January 26, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if the RCA regulates small wutility
communities, such as those owned by a subdivision with its own
wast ewat er treatnment plant.

M5. G ARD answered that the RCA regulates sone of them but it
depends upon the nunber of connections. Therefore, if there are
15 or fewer connections, the RCA doesn't regulate it. She noted
that the RCA has provisional certification for water utilities
with 25 or fewer connections.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN commented that it's quite comon in his
district for subdivisions to have their own utility systens. He
asked if Ms. Gard believes the current system works in a fair
and expedient way for these small, privately owned wutility
compani es.

VS. GARD informed the committee that the provisional
regul ati ons were enacted about 12-14 nonths ago and it seenms to
be noving along. The regulatory effort for a water facility is
[ addressed] on a case-by-case basis.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN suggested that perhaps other wutilities
could be helped by [providing provisional certification] for
utilities with 500 or |ess connections.

M5. G ARD noted that the 25 or fewer connections is a statutory
requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN offered to hel p change that and any other
statutory changes that would help the RCA with its work and the
devel opers of subdi vi sions.

9:37:17 AM

COCHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether there will be any phone
wars this year.

M5. G ARD opi ned that when noving from a nonopoly paradigmto a
conpetitive paradigm the economcs of private commerce is being
toyed with. Therefore, until all markets are fully conpetitive,

there will be phone wars in Al aska. Ms. Gard related that the
RCA is always involved in phone wars whether or not it cones to
the attention of the |egislature. She explained that in rural

areas when conpetition arrives, the existing conpany often wants
to renove the subsidy it has provided [to the satellite
comuni ties]. Therefore, conpetition drives rates to cost,

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- January 26, 2006



whi ch could be an increase or a decrease dependi ng upon whet her
the area received a subsidy when [there was a nonopol y].

9:42: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if, when conpetition arrives in a
|arge community where the existing tel ephone service provides
service to the satellite communities, the conpetition has to
provi de services to those satellite communities as well.

M5. G ARD answered that has yet to be deci ded.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN assuned that if a utility conmpany enters
an area, it can't cherry pick and only provide service to the
areas it desires. He asked if that currently happens.

M5. G ARD said that it hasn't happened yet.

9:43: 00 AM

CO-CHAIR OLSON inquired as to the RCA's greatest challenge for
t he next 12 nonths.

M5. G ARD responded that the challenge is neeting the bar in
2007.

9:43: 53 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS expressed concern that in 2007 nmny of
| egislators won't be here and the sane "story" will be told to
the new | egislators. Therefore, he suggested that |egislators

need to sit [on the conmttee] for four years in order to ensure
consi st ency.

M5. G ARD enphasized that the legislators get to vote on the
sunset .

9:45: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to what happens if the RCA is
sunsetted.

M5. G ARD explained that there is a w nd-down provision if the
RCA is sunsetted. She pointed out that just as the forner
Al aska Public Uilities Comm ssion was replaced by the RCA the
RCA woul d be replaced by another agency. M. Gard related that

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 13- January 26, 2006



the RCA's work would continue and [until a new agency is put in
pl ace], the work woul d be done by the | egislature.

9:47:21 AM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 9:47 a.m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -14- January 26, 2006



